











# The John Moore Primary School

# **Early Years Foundation Stage**

# **School Policy**

Version:	2.3			
Review Cycle:	Annually			
Approval Level:	Governing Body			
Revision History:	Written May 2004 (1.0)			
	Reviewed May 2005 (1.1)			
	Reviewed May 2006 (1.2)			
	Reviewed May 2008 (1.3)			
	Reviewed March 2012 (1.4)			
	Reviewed April 2013 (1.5)			
	Reviewed April 2014 (1.6)			
	Reviewed April 2015 (1.7)			
	Reviewed April 2016 (1.8) Reviewed April 2017 (1.9) Reviewed April 2018 (1.10)			
Reviewed and updated May 2021 (2.1)				
	Reviewed June 2022 (2.2)			
	Reviewed June 2023 (2.3)			
Approved By:	Governing Body	Date:	June 2023	

**Table of Contents** 

1	Introduction	3
2	Aims	3
3	Curriculum	3
4	The Learning Environment	4
5	Planning	4
6 provis	Induction of Reception children from Little Foxes and all other pre-school/home	
6.1	Induction Meeting	5
6.2	Prior to starting school	5
6.3	Autumn term intake to school.	6
6.4	Why is there a shorter induction period?	6
7	Assessment and Record Keeping	6
7.1	Assessment through Observation	6
7.2	Little Foxes Assessment	7
7.3	Baseline Assessment	7
7.4	Record Keeping	7
8	Parents as Partners	8
9	Equal Opportunities	9
10	Inclusion	9
11	Safeguarding and Welfare	9
12	Other linked policies	9
Apper	ndix 1	.11

#### 1 Introduction

At The John Moore Primary School we greatly value the important role that EYFS plays in laying secure foundations for future learning and development. It is important to view the EYFS as preparation for the rest of a child's school life and not simply the end of the EYFS Curriculum.

"When we give every child the best start in their early years, we give them what they need today. We also set them up with every chance of success tomorrow"

(Development Matters, 2021).

All children begin school with a variety of experiences and learning. It is the privilege of the teachers and teaching partners working in Reception to take on the opportunity of building upon that prior learning and experience. This is done through a holistic approach to learning, ensuring that parents/carers and all school staff work effectively together to support children's learning and development.

#### 2 Aims

Through our whole school vision under 'Soar, Share, Strive, Sparkle' we will continue the learning journey for each individual child throughout the Early Years Foundation Stage.

We will ensure that the four guiding principles of the Early Years Foundation Stage document underpin effective practice in our foundation stage classrooms:

- Every child is a <u>unique child</u>, who is constantly learning and can be resilient, capable, confident and self-assured.
- Children learn to be strong and independent through <u>positive relationships</u>.
- Children learn and develop well in <u>enabling environments</u> with teaching and support from adults, who respond to their individual interests and needs and help them to build their learning over time. Children benefit from a strong partnership between practitioners and parents and/or carers.
- The importance of <u>learning and development</u>, children develop and learn at different rates.

The Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) applies to children from birth to the end of the Reception Year. At The John Moore Primary School we also have a nursery for children aged two-three years, a Pre-school for three – four year olds and two Reception classes where children join us at the beginning of the school year in which they are five years old.

#### 3 Curriculum

At Little Foxes Playgroup and The John Moore Primary School, we follow the curriculum as outlined in the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) document, which can be downloaded here. Statutory framework for the early years foundation stage (publishing.service.gov.uk)

The EYFS is based curriculum is constructed around the three prime areas and the four specific areas of learning as defined in the Early Years Foundation Stage.

The three prime areas are particularly important for building a foundation for igniting children's curiosity and enthusiasm for learning, forming relationships and thriving. The three **Prime Areas** are:

- Communication and Language
- Personal, Social and Emotional Development
- Physical Development

The three prime areas are strengthened and applied in the four **Specific Areas**:

- Literacy
- Mathematics
- Understanding the World
- Expressive Arts and Design

(These are detailed further in Appendix 1)

# 4 The Learning Environment

Children learn best through playful and fun activities where they can make links in their learning. Alongside our adult-led inputs and activities, we plan opportunities for Literacy and Maths activities in the environment as well as creative and investigative activities linked to our topics. The children are given opportunities for child-initiated play, ('VIP' – 'Very important play') making regular use of a wide range of resources and equipment to support their learning.

The outdoor areas are used as an extension to each of the settings- the majority of activities undertaken inside can also be completed outside. We recognise many children are drawn to learning outside, therefore the outdoor area is used to deliver many aspects of the Foundation Curriculum.

The children in the foundation stage, also have regular opportunities to participate in Outdoor Learning sessions. During these sessions they learn about the environment, habitats and seasonal changes. They learn skills of co-operation and communication whilst constructing with natural materials and creating art from naturally found items. They also have many opportunities for Physical, Personal and Social development through teamwork and co-operation.

#### 5 Planning

• In Little Foxes, planning is a blend of 'In the moment' coupled with Talk for Writing principles and topic led, as well as responding to the children's interests. Our children follow a child-initiated approach to learning and so it is the role of staff to stand back, observe and intervene when they view a 'teachable moment'. Much of our practice is therefore 'reflective' and recorded after the teaching and learning cycle has taken place.

- In Little Foxes and Reception, coverage of the Educational Programmes is achieved through the delivery of topics, as identified in the long-term plan. Literacy and Maths are linked to topics whenever possible.
- Weekly plans are completed in LFs pre-school room and Reception for Literacy,
  Maths and topic-related work through teacher-led activities, and teacher-directed
  tasks. The opportunities for child-initiated play are detailed on these plans. This is
  organised in a way that will ensure that there is a balance of activities over a period
  of time.
- Both Little Foxes and Reception follow Talk for Writing as part of the whole school approach to writing. Daily 'Talk for Writing' sessions are taught in Reception and at Nursery. Our emphasis remains on inspiring children to want to write and see a purpose for writing through our planning. In Reception class, we teach a daily Phonics lesson through 'Sounds Write' and a daily handwriting session focusing on the teaching of pre-cursive letter formation. At Little Foxes, Nursery staff use the phase 1 lesson resources to deliver a daily session to all children in the setting alongside plenty of play-based Phonics activities and resources from 'Early Years Staffroom.' Phonemes are not explicitly taught but staff are always ready to differentiate their teaching style to individual children who may show an interest in early reading and writing in their play. Teaching a wide range of vocabulary is paramount in the Early Years. Our practitioners, TPs and teachers, are skilled in imparting new vocabulary to children through their 'back and forth' interactions with them. We consistently model high quality communication and language skills and our children make rapid progress with their speaking and listening skills because of this.
- Early Maths sessions are taught in Reception using resources primarily from the White Rose Mathshook linked to real-life problem solving and a strong emphasis is placed on Mathematical vocabulary.
- Children are encouraged to be as independent as possible by being given responsibility for finding and tidying away resources. The time involved in the early stages preparing children to be independent is well spent, as it lays a good foundation for the way they will work throughout the school.

# 6 Induction of Reception children from Little Foxes and all other preschool/home provisions.

### 6.1 Induction Meeting

- Parents/carers are invited to a Welcome Meeting which takes place during the Summer Term to welcome and provide all the necessary information for starting school.
- Children are provided with a number of items as a gift from the school in preparation for them starting school.

# **6.2** Prior to starting school

- If the children are in Little Foxes, transition is fluid throughout the year as the children use the school hall for PE and the Outdoor learning area, as well as attending concerts and some assemblies.
- In the Summer Term for other settings, including those children with childminders or at home, the Foundation Stage leader will make contact to discuss any key information which they may wish to pass on.
- Once places have been officially allocated and accepted, visits will be offered during the second half of the summer term, for children to spend time in the Reception classroom with the Class Teacher and Teaching Partner.
- During the summer term, parents/carers will be offered a home visit from the Reception Teacher and Teaching Partner. This will provide an opportunity for the teaching team to build relationships with both the child and their parent/carer in their own environment. An appointment in school is offered as an alternative if preferred.

#### 6.3 Autumn term intake to school.

- The children's entry to school will be staggered over approx. 7 days; the class will be divided into two groups according to age, starting with the oldest children.
- The entry timetable is constructed so that each group attends separately for half-day sessions in the mornings or the afternoons. The children's time in school will be lengthened to include lunch and lunchtime play, and then the whole school day. Baseline assessments will be carried out during that time.
- Some children may require a longer induction period into school. This will be discussed on an individual basis between school and parents/carers.
- There will be a Reception Curriculum Evening for all parents/carers to offer an insight into the way learning is structured and to share ideas on how they can best support their child's learning at home.

# 6.4 Why is there a shorter induction period?

- It enables the Reception team to begin delivering the curriculum and support children to start learning routines more quickly.
- Some children will be used to full days from full-time attendance at pre-school settings as well as supporting working parents/carers.
- Children will be able to start developing friendships with their peers.

# 7 Assessment and Record Keeping

#### 7.1 Assessment through Observation

At The John Moore Primary School and Little Foxes playgroup, ongoing assessment is an integral part of the learning and development processes. Staff observe pupils to identify

their level of achievement, interests and learning styles. These observations are used to shape future planning.

Children in Little Foxes and Reception give indications of their learning all of the time through what they say, what they do, how they approach activities etc., and it is primarily by observing children that judgements are made to inform records and planning. Observations take place each day through adult-directed activities in Literacy and Maths, child-initiated activities and interactions with the children. These observations are recorded in a variety of ways e.g. photographs, annotations on work and in the child's electronic Learning Journey (Famly in Little Foxes, Tapestry in Reception). Parents/carers are also encouraged to share their observations and experiences of their child at home via both platforms.

#### 7.2 Little Foxes Assessment

Little Foxes Playgroup has two rooms. Wrens, our rising 3s, and Sparrows, our pre-school. In Wrens staff carry out the stator '2-Year checks' and share these with the Playgoup Manager and parents. At the end of their time in Wrens, staff will write a short transition report for Sparrow staff which is shared with parents.

In Sparrows, an EYFS Transition Record is written by the child's key person about each child. This report will be sent to the child's future school and will be a report summarising their attainment and achievement in each area of learning. This will show whether a child is 'On track' or needing 'Support' in their development moving forward. The profile reflects ongoing observations and documents discussions with parents and/or carers. The results of the profile are then shared with parents and/or carers.

Both rooms use Family to add child-initiated/adult-initiated observations of their key children. Parents are invited to reply.

#### 7.3 Baseline Assessment

At The John Moore Primary School, we carry out the statutory Reception Baseline Assessment which is a short assessment in the areas of early mathematics, literacy, communication and language. This data will be compared to Key Stage 2 outcomes to form an overall progress measure.

We also carry out our own baseline assessments for all children to ensure we can address specific next steps for each child and ensure that they make continued progress throughout their Reception year and subsequent school years. The data is collected through various methods such as activities and observations by the adults involved with the child during their school day.

### 7.4 Record Keeping

- In Little Foxes, Family is used to record children's achievements, as well as an end of Year report.
- In Little Foxes, pupils' developmental progress is shared in Parents meetings twice a year, as well as any ongoing sessions including a childs' Myplan should they have one. Opportunity is given in Pre-school for the child's new school teacher to discuss their children with his/her key worker.

- Records of each child's progress within the educational programme will be kept in accordance with county policy, ensuring that there is continuity of record keeping between settings. The Reception teacher will record their findings on Insight Tracker each term.
- In school, pupils' progress during the year is shared at Parents' Evenings which are held in the Autumn and Spring terms, with an optional evening in the Summer term. The end of year school report shows whether pupils are Emerging or Expected for each of the Early Learning Goals in the seven areas of learning by the end of the Foundation Stage.
- The profile data is discussed with the Year 1 teacher so that he/she can continue to help the children to achieve the Early Learning Goals if they have not done so before they can access the Key Stage 1 Curriculum.

# 8 Parents as Partners

We hope to encourage a strong partnership between home and school, so that parents/carers feel involved in their child's learning. This is something we are deeply committed to promoting at The John Moore Primary School and Little Foxes Playgroup and we do this in a number of ways.

Before any child starts at either Nursery or school, parents and/or carers are given the opportunity to visit the setting and meet the staff to ensure it is the right setting for both them and their child. In Little Foxes, these are in the form of 'Open Mornings' Further information regarding both settings are available on the school website and prospective families will be directed towards these.

In Little Foxes, if a parent has accepted a place, we hold a new parents information evening in July. If a family chooses to accept a place in Reception class, they will be invited to attend a transition meeting with the EYFS Lead, their team and Head Teacher, in which they will receive invaluable information about the school and transition process.

We provide opportunities for parents/carers to join their child in their learning at Little Foxes and in school with special events. In Reception, parents are invited to attend Phonics and Maths lessons and a weekly Sparkle Spot session. Likewise in Reception, the team like to recognise children's personal achievements at home with Sparkle Vouchers, that both teachers and parents/carers can use to recognise a child's achievements.

- In Little Foxes, every child is assigned a key person who helps to ensure that their learning and care is tailored to meet their needs. The key person supports parents and/or carers in guiding their child's development at home. The key person also helps families to engage with more specialist support, if appropriate.
- In Reception, there will be opportunities to attend various Curriculum sessions throughout a child's time at our school, with a specific Reception Curriculum Evening in the Autumn term.
- In Reception, Parents/carers will be provided with an 'Overview' each term which details the topics and areas of learning we will be covering in class. In Little Foxes, we send out a weekly news feed that informs parents what their child has been learning and what they may be looking at the following week.

- In Little Foxes we use 'Famly' for our online learning journey and for messaging as and when. In Reception we use 'Tapestry' for our online learning journey. With both platforms, we encourage parents/carers to participate in and share their experiences from home (more information about this is given out once their child has started playgroup/school).
- In school, each year group uses ClassDojo as a way to share their class' story with parents/carers at home. It allows parents/carers to gain an insight into their child's learning and class events. In Little Foxes, we send out our weekly news feed.
- We welcome and encourage parents/carers to talk to staff at a mutually convenient time if they have concerns about any aspect of their child's progress in school.
- Staff will involve parents/carers in behavioural and academic issues as they arise.

# 9 Equal Opportunities

At The John Moore Primary School and Little Foxes Playgroup, we provide all pupils, regardless of ethnicity, culture, religion, home language, family background, learning difficulties, disabilities, gender or ability, equal access to all aspects of school life and work to ensure that every child is valued fully as an individual. Staff, as role models, are aware of the influence of adults in promoting positive attitudes and use that influence to challenge stereotypical ideas.

#### 10 Inclusion

Children with additional educational needs will be given support as appropriate to enable them to benefit from the Early Years Foundation curriculum. This includes children that are more able, and those with specific learning difficulties and disabilities. Additional adult support may be provided for children with special needs, thus increasing the adult/pupil ratio. The Little Foxes SENDCo lead and the school's Inclusion Manager is available to provide additional information and advice to practitioners and parents/carers, and for arranging external intervention and support where necessary.

# 11 Safeguarding and Welfare

"Children learn best when they are healthy, safe and secure, when their individual needs are met, and when they have positive relationships with the adults caring for them." (DfE, 2014)

At The John Moore Primary School and Little Foxes playgroup, we provide a welcoming, safe, secure and stimulating environment enabling all children to develop into independent and confident individuals. Please also refer to the Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy and Health and Safety Policy which applies to both Little Foxes and our Reception setting. The Manager and Lead Teacher of Little Foxes is the trained DSL for the setting.

### 12 Other linked policies

- Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy
- Health & Safety Policy
- Special Educational Needs and Disability Policy (including Local Offer)

- Behaviour Policy
- Attendance Policy
- First Aid Policy
- Play policy
- Fire safety
- Role of the Key Person policy

# **Appendix 1**

**The areas of learning and development** support, foster, promote and develop children's development, as detailed in the Educational Programmes:

#### **Prime Areas**

- 1. Communication and Language The development of children's spoken language underpins all seven areas of learning and development. Children's back-and-forth interactions from an early age form the foundations for language and cognitive development. Through conversation, story-telling and role play, where children share their ideas with support and modelling from their teacher, and sensitive questioning that invites them to elaborate, children become comfortable using a rich range of vocabulary and language structures.
- 2. **Personal, Social and Emotional Development** Children's personal, social and emotional development (PSED) is crucial for children to lead healthy and happy lives, and is fundamental to their cognitive development. Through adult modelling and guidance, they will learn how to look after their bodies, including healthy eating, and manage personal needs independently. Children should be supported to manage emotions, develop a positive sense of self, set themselves simple goals, have confidence in their own abilities, to persist and wait for what they want and direct attention as necessary. These attributes will provide a secure platform from which children can achieve at school and in later life.
- 3. **Physical Development** Physical activity is vital in children's all-round development, enabling them to pursue happy, healthy and active lives. Gross motor skills provide the foundation for developing healthy bodies and social and emotional well-being. Fine motor control and precision helps with hand-eye co-ordination, which is later linked to early literacy.

#### **Specific Areas of Learning**

- 1. Literacy It is crucial for children to develop a life-long love of reading. Reading consists of two dimensions: language comprehension and word reading. Language comprehension (necessary for both reading and writing) starts from birth. It only develops when adults talk with children about the world around them and the books (stories and non-fiction) they read with them, and enjoy rhymes, poems and songs together. Skilled word reading, taught later, involves both the speedy working out of the pronunciation of unfamiliar printed words (decoding) and the speedy recognition of familiar printed words. Writing involves transcription (spelling and handwriting) and composition (articulating ideas and structuring them in speech, before writing).
- 2. **Mathematics** Developing a strong grounding in number is essential so that all children develop the necessary building blocks to excel mathematically. By providing frequent and varied opportunities to build and apply this understanding such as using manipulatives, including small pebbles and tens frames for organising counting children will develop a secure base of knowledge and vocabulary from which

mastery of mathematics is built. In addition, it is important that the curriculum includes rich opportunities for children to develop their spatial reasoning skills across all areas of mathematics including shape, space and measures. It is important that children develop positive attitudes and interests in mathematics, look for patterns and relationships, spot connections, 'have a go', talk to adults and peers about what they notice and not be afraid to make mistakes.

- 3. **Understanding the World** Understanding the world involves guiding children to make sense of their physical world and their community. The frequency and range of children's personal experiences increases their knowledge and sense of the world around them as well as listening to a broad selection of stories, non-fiction, rhymes and poems will foster their understanding of our culturally, socially, technologically and ecologically diverse world. Enriching and widening children's vocabulary will support later reading comprehension
- 4. **Expressive Arts and Design** The development of children's artistic and cultural awareness supports their imagination and creativity. It is important that children have regular opportunities to engage with the arts, enabling them to explore and play with a wide range of media and materials. The quality and variety of what children see, hear and participate in is crucial for developing their understanding, self-expression, vocabulary and ability to communicate through the arts.

DfE (2021) Statutory Framework for the Early Years Foundation Stage